



10th September 2020

Securities & Exchange Board of India (Investment Management Department) Exchange Plaza, Wing-II, 4th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051

Dear Sir,



Re.: <u>Submission of Disclosure document Report for Portfolio Management Activity for the six</u> months ended 31st March 2020.

Enclosed please find herewith the Disclosure document Report for Portfolio Management Activity for the six months ended 31st March 2020.

Advis

Kindly acknowledge the receipt of the same.

Thanking you

Yours faithfully,

For Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

Principal Officer/ Compliance officer

Encl.: As above



Portfolio Management Services Disclosure Document

				1
Investor Inform	ation:			-
Client:		<i>y</i> .		Short Spirit Spirit Spirit
PMS Product:				The second named in column 2 is not the owner, the second named in column 2 is not the second named in
Date:				NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE OWNER, WHEN THE OWNER,
RM/Distributor:			1	

Portfolio Manager Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

(Registration No -INP000000282)

Corporate Office:

11th Floor, Times Tower, Kamla City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013. India **Tel No:** +91 22 4047 7000 | **Fax No:** +91 22 4047 7070 |

Registered Office:

Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063. India Tel No: +91 22 6281 7000(Board Line) | Fax No: +91 22 6281 3888|

Website: www.rathi.com





Disclosure Document

Disclosure document for Portfolio Management Services by Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

- (i) This Disclosure document has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of India along with a certificate in the prescribed format in terms of Regulation 14 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993.
- (ii) The purpose of the document is to provide essential information about the portfolio services in a manner to assist and enable the investors in making informed decision for engaging Anand Rathi Advisors Limited as a Portfolio Manager.
- (iii) The disclosure document sets forth concisely the necessary information about Anand Rathi Advisors Limited that a prospective investor ought to know before Investing. The investor should carefully read the disclosure document prior to making a decision to avail of portfolio management services and retain this document for future reference.
- (iv) Anand Rathi Advisors Limited is permitted to provide Portfolio Management Services pursuant to its registration as a portfolio manager with SEBI vide registration no. INP000000282 dated July 01st, 2005, under the Regulations.
- (v) Details of the Compliance Officer

Name:

Deepak Kedia

Address:

Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor,

Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E),

Mumbai - 400 063.

Phone:

+91 22 6281 7000

Fax:

+91 22 6281 3888

E-mail:

deepakkedia@rathi.com

(vi) This Disclosure document is dated 31st March, 2020





Form C

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (PORTFOLIO MANAGERS) REGULATIONS 1993)

(Regulation 14)

Dear Investor,

We confirm that:

The Disclosure Document forwarded to the Board is in accordance with the SEBI (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993 and the guidelines and directives issued there under by the Board from time to time.

The disclosure made in the Disclosure Document are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a well informed decisions regarding entrusting the management of the portfolio to us / investment in the Portfolio Management Services.

The Disclosure Document has been duly verified by an independent chartered accountant M/s. Mahesh Chandra & Associates, Chartered Accountants, #126, Blue Rose Industrial Estate, Next to Metro Mall, Off Western Express Highway, Borivali (E), Mumbai-400 066, Telephone No. 22949594/ 40163976, Membership No. 174518, on September 4th 2020.

For ANAND RATHI ADVISORS LIMITED

Deepak Kedia

Compliance Officer

Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E),

Mumba

Mumbai - 400 063

India

Date: 9th September 2020.

Place: Mumbai

Table of Contents

1.	Disclaimer	5
2.	Definitions	5
3.	Description	7
	 (i) History, Present Business and Background of the Portfolio Manage (ii) Promoters of the portfolio manager, directors and their backgroun (iii) Group Company Details (iv) Details of Services being offered 	
4.	Penalties, Pending litigations or proceedings etc	10
5.	Services Offered	11
6.	Risk Factors	13
7.	Client Representation	15
8.	Financial Performance of the Portfolio Manager	16
9.	Portfolio Management Performance of the Portfolio Manager	16
10.	Nature of Expenses	18
11.	Taxation	20
12.	Accounting Policies	29
13.	Investor Services	32
14.	Annexure – I	33



Disclaimer:

The particulars of this Disclosure Document have been prepared in accordance with the SEBI (Portfolio Manager) Regulations, 1993 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (hereinafter "SEBI"). This document has neither been approved nor disapproved by SEBI, nor has SEBI certified the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of the Document.

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited has based this document on information obtained from sources it believes to be reliable but which it has not independently verified and hence makes no guarantee, representation or warranty and accepts no responsibility or liability as to its accuracy or completeness. The information contained in this document is based upon publicly available information at the time of publication, which is subject to change from time to time.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations not confirmed in this Disclosure Document, in connection with this Disclosure Document, and any information or representations not contained herein, and the same must not be relied upon as having been authorized by Anand Rathi Advisors Limited.

The Disclosure Document and its contents are for information only and do not constitute a distribution, an endorsement, an investment advice, an offer to buy or sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any. Portfolio Strategies/Option or any other securities or financial products/investment products mentioned in the Disclosure Document or an attempt to influence the opinion or behavior of the Clients. Any use of the information/any investments and investment related decisions of the Clients are at their sole discretion & risk and the Portfolio Manager shall not be responsible/liable for the same in any manner whatsoever, to any person/entity.

2. <u>Definitions and Abbreviations:</u>

For the purposes of this Disclosure Document, the following words shall have the meanings given hereinafter:

"Act" means the SEBI Act, 1992;

"Agreement" or "Portfolio Management Services Agreement" or "PMS Agreement" means the agreement between the Client and the Portfolio Manager for providing portfolio management services to that Client and stating therein the terms and conditions on which the Portfolio Manager shall provide such services to the Client. This agreement has been executed in accordance with Regulations 14 and Schedule IV of the SEBI (Portfolio Manager) Regulations, 1993;

"Client" or "Investor" means any person who enters into an agreement for availing the Portfolio Management Services offered by the Portfolio Manager;

"Depository" means as defined under the Depositories Act,

"Depository Account" means any account of the Client or for the Client with an entity registered as a depository participant as per the relevant regulations;

"Discretionary Portfolio Management Services" means services under a contract entered into between the Portfolio Manager and the Client, wherein the portfolio manager uses his own discretion (which includes any degree of discretion that a portfolio manager may want to use) for investment in different type of securities or management of the portfolio of securities or the funds of the client;



"Equity related instruments" means and includes, but is not limited to, convertible bonds, debentures, convertible preference shares, equity warrants, equity derivatives, FCCBs, equity mutual funds and any other like instrument;

"Financial Year" means the year starting from April 1 of any current year and ending on March 31 of the following year;

"Funds" means the monies managed by the Portfolio Manager on behalf of the Clients pursuant to the PMS Agreement and includes, the monies mentioned in the account opening form, any further monies placed by the Client with the Portfolio Manager for being managed pursuant to the PMS Agreement, the proceeds of sale or other realization of the portfolio and interest, dividend or other monies arising from the assets, so long as the same is managed by the portfolio manager;

"Funds managed" means the market value of the Portfolio of the Client as on date;

"Initial Corpus" means the value of the funds and/or the market value of securities brought in by the Client at the time of subscribing to the Portfolio Management Services;

"Investment Advisory Services" refers to the Advice by the Portfolio Manager with regard to the Client's Portfolio under Management;

"Multi Manager Portfolio Manager Services"

- Is an investment solution that brings together a set of Portfolio Managers, with the objective of providing Consistent and Superior long term returns;
- It constructs the portfolio for the client after taking the advice from third party Investment Advisor (Third party Portfolio Managers registered with SEBI);
- Client has the option to choose the asset allocation with respect to the Investment Advisor, and based on the Client's preference, his portfolio can be allocated accordingly

"Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management Services" means a portfolio management service wherein, a Portfolio Manager acts on the instructions received from the Client with regard to investment of his funds, under a contract relating to portfolio management, and, will exercise no discretion at all as to the investment or management of the portfolio of the securities or the funds of the Client;

"Portfolio" means the securities and/or funds managed by the Portfolio Manager on behalf of the Client and include any Securities and/or funds placed by the Client with the Portfolio Manager for being managed pursuant to the PMS Agreement. It also includes securities or other realization of the portfolio acquired by the Portfolio Manager through investment of funds and bonus, dividends or other receipts and rights in respect of Securities, forming part of the Portfolio, so long as the same is managed by the Portfolio Manager under the Portfolio Management Services Agreement;

"Portfolio Manager" means Anand Rathi Advisors Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063, and, registered with SEBI as a Portfolio Manager vide registration certificate no. PM/INP000000282, under the SEBI (Portfolio Manager) Regulations, 1993;

"Portfolio Management Services" means the Discretionary Portfolio Management Services or Non Discretionary Portfolio Management Services or Investment Advisory Services or Structured Products or Multi Manager – Portfolio Manager Process, as the context may require;

"Regulations" or "SEBI regulations" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993, including any circulars, directions or clarifications issued by SEBI and/or any government authority and as applicable to the Portfolio Manager.

"Rules" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Manager) Rules, 1992;

"SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

"Product offered/Option" means any of the current investment Product/option or such Product/option that maybe introduced at any time in the future by the Portfolio Manager;

"Structured Products" means the products that the Portfolio Manager may, from time to time launch that are structured towards meeting specific needs of a particular Client and that shall be managed in accordance with the specifications provided by the Portfolio Manager to the Client;

"Securities" means security as defined in Section 2 (h) of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 provided that securities shall not include any security which the Portfolio Manager is prohibited from investing in or advising under the Regulations or any other law for the time being in force.

"Net Asset Value" or "NAV" means the market value of the Assets managed by the Portfolio Manager, as calculated by the Portfolio Manager from time to time, depending on the Investment Profiles chosen by the Client.

The terms that are used herein and not defined, shall, except where the context or meaning otherwise so requires, shall have the meanings as are assigned to them under the Act, the Regulations or the Rules.

Interpretation:

- Words and expressions used in this Disclosure Document and not expressly defined shall be interpreted according to their general meaning and usage. The definitions are not exhaustive.
- > They have been included only for the purpose of clarity and shall also carry meanings assigned to them in regulations governing Portfolio Management Services.
- > All references to the masculine shall include the feminine and all references, to the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa.
- > All references "Rs." refer to Indian Rupees. A "crore" means "ten million" and a "lakh" means a "hundred thousand".

3. Description

(i) History, Present Business and Background of the Portfolio Manager

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited (ARAL) was incorporated on May 26, 1997 (registration no. 11 – 043579) as a Private Limited Company named Samarth Yarn Trading Private Limited. Makhan Lal Agarwal and Ashok Pandya were the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association. The name of Samarth Yarn Trading Private Limited was changed to Anand Rathi Advisors Private Limited pursuant to the certificate dated April 20, 2005 issued by the Registrar of Companies (ROC). Anand Rathi Advisors Private Limited became a Public Unlisted Company pursuant to the certificate dated February 18, 2009 issued by the Registrar of Companies (ROC). The shareholding of ARAL was acquired by Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited on March 28, 2012.

The Company is into Investment Banking Business, Portfolio Management Services (PMS), Investment Advisers, and is a registered Merchant Banker with SEBI.



(ii) Promoters of the Portfolio Manager, Directors and their Background

Promoters

S.No.	Shareholders Name	No. of Shares held	% of Holding
1	Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited	99,05,286	100
2	Anand Rathi*	100	0
3	Navratanmal Gupta*	100	0
4	Amit Rathi *	100	0
5	Supriya Rathi*	100	0
6	Pradeep Gupta*	100	0
7	Priti Gupta*	100	0
Total	Tite Sapaa	99,05,886	100
Total	* As a Nominee of Anand Rathi Global Finance Ltd		

The Promoters of Anand Rathi Advisors Limited is Mr. Anand Rathi.

Particulars of the Directors of Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

The Directors of the Portfolio Manager are:

Sr. No.	Name of Directors	DIN	Designation	Date Of Appointment	Residential Address
1.	Mr. Pradeep Gupta	00040117	Director	03/11/2009	301-C, Beau Monde Tower, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025.
2.	Mr. Vishal Laddha	00033628	Director	15/07/2017	401A, Ayushi CHS Ltd., 248JB Nagar, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400059.
3.	Mr. Samir Bahl	00101955	Director	15/07/2017	D-3403, Lodha Primero No - 34, Appolo Mill Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai – 400011.

(iii) Top 10 Group Companies/Firms as on March 31st ,2020

Sr. No.	Name of the Companies	Sr. No.	Name of the Companies
1.	Anand Rathi Financial Services Ltd	6.	Anand Rathi Insurance Brokers Ltd
2.	Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Ltd	7	AR Wealth Management Pvt Ltd
3.	Anand Rathi Commodities Ltd	8	Vahin Advisors & Traders Private Ltd
4.	Anand Rathi Wealth Services Ltd	9	Anand Rathi IT Pvt Ltd
5.	Anand Rathi Global Finance Ltd	10	Anand Rathi Housing Finance Ltd



(iv) Details of services being offered by the Portfolio Manager:

The Portfolio Management Services of the Portfolio Manager have been structured broadly under the following categories:

a. Discretionary Services:

Under these services, the Portfolio Manager will exercise sole and absolute discretion as to investment and/or management of the portfolio of the securities or the funds of the Clients as he deems fit and within terms of the PMS Agreement executed with each Client.

The Portfolio Manager shall have the sole and absolute discretion to make such changes in the investments and to the portfolio, and invest some or all of the Client's monies in such manner, and in such markets as he deems fit. The Client may give informal guidance to customize the model portfolio; however, the final decision rests with the Portfolio Manager. The securities invested / disinvested by the Portfolio Manager for Clients in the same Model portfolio may differ from one Client to another Client. The Portfolio Manager's decision in deployment of the Client's account is absolute and final and can never be called in question or be open to review at any time during the currency of this Agreement or at any time thereafter, except, on the ground of malafide, fraud, conflict of interest or gross negligence. This right of the Portfolio Manager shall be exercised strictly in accordance with the relevant Acts, Rules, and Regulations, guidelines and notifications issued by SEBI and in force from time to time.

Under these services, the Client may authorize the Portfolio Manager to invest their Funds in specific financial instruments or a variety of specific financial instruments or restrict the Portfolio Manager from investing in specific financial instruments or securities. A periodical statement in respect of Client's Portfolio generated from our end shall be sent to the respective Clients.

b. Non-Discretionary Services:

Under these services, Client decides their own investments, with the Portfolio Manager only facilitating the execution of the transactions. The Portfolio Manager's role is limited to providing research, investment advice, and guidance and trade execution at the Client's request. The Portfolio Manager shall execute orders as per the mandate received from the Clients.

The deployment of the Client's Funds by the Portfolio Manager on the instructions of the Client is absolute and final and can never be called in question or shall not be open to review at any time during the currency of the Agreement or at any time thereafter except on the ground of malafide, fraud, conflict of interest or gross negligence. The rights and obligations of the Portfolio Manager shall be exercised strictly in accordance with the Act, Rules and/or Regulations, guidelines and notifications issued by SEBI and in force from time to time. A periodical statement in respect of Client's Portfolio generated from our end shall be sent to the respective Clients.

c. Investment Advisory Services:

Under these services, the Portfolio Manager advises Clients with regard to the Client's Portfolio Managed and/or incidental to the PMS as may be agreed upon, from time to time.



4. Penalties, pending litigation or proceedings, findings of inspection or investigations for which action may have been taken or initiated by any regulatory authority

There are no pending penalties, pending litigation or proceedings, findings of inspection or investigations for which action may have been taken or to the best of the knowledge of the Portfolio Manager initiated by any regulatory authority against the Portfolio Manager under the registration no INP000000282 or any of its employees or directors of any nature whatsoever.

Sr. No.	Particulars	Status
(i)	All cases of penalties imposed by SEBI or the directions issued by SEBI under the SEBI Act, 1992 or Rules or Regulations made there under:	Nil
(ii)	The nature of the penalty or direction	Not Applicable
(iii)	Penalties imposed for any economic offence and/or for violation of any securities laws	Nil
(iv)	Any pending material litigation/legal proceedings against the portfolio manager/key personnel with separate disclosure regarding pending criminal cases, if any	Details of Litigation/ legal proceedings against Portfolio Manager / KMP is as under which also pertains to client complaint against the director / employees of the ARAL arising out of dispute of broking associate company, which are under investigation stage and no charge sheet has been filed by the police authority.
(v)	Any deficiency in the systems and operations of the portfolio manager observed by the Board or any regulatory agency	Nil
(vi)	Any enquiry/adjudication proceedings initiated by the Board against the portfolio manager or its directors, principal officer or employee or any person directly or indirectly connected with the portfolio manager or its directors, principal officer or employee, under the Act or Rules or Regulations made there under	Nil

Penalties, pending litigations or proceedings etc.:-- As give below

No pending litigation or legal proceeding against ARAL however there are few client complaint against the director / employees of the ARAL arising out of dispute of broking associate company, which are under investigation stage and no charge sheet has been filed by the police authority.

Following are the details of the matters:-

Pending Litigation against ARAL

• A civil suit bearing no. CS (COMM) no. 1397/2016 has been filed by a client before the Delhi High Court against, amongst others including ARFSL, and ARAL claiming a total sum of ₹ 34.35 million towards the principal amount, interest and damages thereon for alleged losses suffered by them as a consequence of the tortuous negligence and/ or fraudulent misrepresentation in advise rendered by ARFSL, ARGFL and ARAL on the basis of which they had advanced monies to Arankari Risk Management Services Private Limited. ARFSL has filed its reply dated March 3, 2017 denying all the allegations. The matter is currently pending.

Pending Litigation against KMPs/ Directors

- On or around August 16, 2017, Money Magnum Constructions (hereinafter referred to as "Money Magnum") (client of Anand Rathi Commodities Limited) has filed a Commercial Suit bearing no. COMS/57/2016 under Commercial Court Act, 2015 before the Commercial Division of Hon'ble Bombay High Court, praying for recovery of sum of Rs. 6,29,93,132 (Rupees Six Crore Twenty-nine Lakh Ninety-three Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-two) with interest thereon @ 18% p.a. till realization of the payment. Written statement has been filed on June 9th, 2017. The said matter is pending before high court.
- Mr. Bharat Bhushan Gupta has filed Petition u/s 482 / Criminal Writ Petition no. 842/2017 before
 Uttarakhand High Court challenging order of Revision Court dated 7-12-2016 wherein the court has
 confirmed the discharge order of trial court for discharging Director and Promoters of the Company.
 Matter is pending for Reply and argument.
- Mr. Vishwanath Pujari, has filed a criminal complaint bearing no. 32/2017 with Banashankari Police Station, against the management personnel and officials of the company (one of them is Mr. Anand Rathi) for the dispute arising out of transactions executed in his trading / LAS account. Mr. Anand Rathi has granted anticipatory bail in the said matter. The matter is pending with investigating authority.

5. <u>Services Offered</u>

The Portfolio Manager offers Discretionary Portfolio Management Services, Advisory Services, Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management Services, Structured Products, and Multi-Manager Product Services, as per the PMS Agreement executed with each client.

The Portfolio Manager under its Portfolio Management Services offers Portfolios with different investment objectives and policies to cater to requirements of individual Client. The Portfolio Manager shall deploy the Securities and/or funds of the Client in accordance with the investment objectives in the Portfolio selected by the Client. At present the Portfolio Manager is offering the following Portfolios:

Under these services, the Clients may authorize the Portfolio Manager to invest their Funds in specific financial instruments or a mix of specific financial instruments or restrict the Portfolio Manager from investing in specific financial instruments or securities. Periodical statements in respect of Client's Portfolio shall be made available to Client through Login ID and Password provided for Web access on 24X7.

A. <u>Discretionary Portfolio Management Service Options:</u>

(i) Portfolio Plus

Portfolio Plus details:

Portfolio Plus was launched under the Anand Rathi' Portfolio Management Services and is provided by Anand Rathi Advisors Limited.

Objective - The key objective is to deliver consistent return over the long term, from a portfolio of companies selected on basis of well defined objectives and good corporate track record

Construct - Return on Equity is a key criteria based on which the underlying universe of companies are targeted. These companies are chosen from one of the most comprehensive basket: BSE500.

The second important focus for selection is an optimum size of corporate operations and a good track record. Consistency of key operating metrics is the final criteria based on which the companies would be eligible for the portfolio.

(ii) Impress Portfolio

IMPRESS Portfolio details: IMPRESS Portfolio is being launched under the Portfolio Management Scheme and would be provided by Anand Rathi Advisors Ltd.

Type: Discretionary PMS

Objective - Focus on Return Optimization by investing in multicap portfolio of rising enterprises with sound corporate track record and sustainable business model keeping balance between value and growth strategy.

Construct - Investments in 15-20 listed equity stocks across market capitalization large cap, Midcap, small Cap and diversified across sectors.

Focus on Companies with good corporate track record, stable and improving margin (ROE and ROCE) and visibility of earnings.

Benchmark: NIFTY 500

(iii) MNC Portfolio

MNC Portfolio details:- MNC Portfolio is being launched under the Portfolio Management Scheme and would be provided by Anand Rathi Advisors Ltd.

Objective - Focus on consistency of return and risk moderation by investing in Multinational Companies listed in

Construct - Investments in 15-20 listed equity stocks across market capitalization and diversified across sectors. Investments into listed companies in India in which the foreign shareholding is over 50% and/or the management control is bestowed in foreign company and/or the technological and managerial know-how brought in by foreign

Benchmark: NIFTY MNC INDEX and NIFTY 50 INDEX

Non - Discretionary Portfolio Management Service Options:

(i) Debt Enhancer Portfolio

Debt Enhancer Portfolio details:-

- To reduce the volatility of the portfolio.
- To infuse stability.

Type: Non-Discretionary PMS

Objective: -

Debt Enhancer - PMS is a strategy wherein Portfolio Manager pursue additional returns on funds Allocated to the debt portion in portfolio by reallocating these funds to equity markets (NIFTY) while maintaining a similar risk

While Portfolio Manager allocate funds from the debt to equity, they maintain risk profile by offering downside

Construct:-

(Equity MF + Portfolio insurance product (ARGFL Structure)



Benchmark: Nifty 50 for PIP Returns

(ii) Structured Products

The Portfolio Manager may, from time to time, launch products that are structured towards meeting specific needs of Clients. These products would be invested and managed in accordance with the product specifications provided by the Portfolio Manager to Client.

(iii) Alpha Strategy details

Alpha Strategy is being launched under the Portfolio Management Scheme and would be provided by Anand Rathi Advisors Ltd.

Type: Non Discretionary PMS

Objective: -

Invest in a basket of well researched mutual funds that have the potential to deliver consistent alpha over selected benchmark.

Construct:-

Investments in 7-10 open ended mutual fund schemes across different AMCs and different categories as defined by SEBI.

Benchmark: NIFTY 50 INDEX

6. Risk Factors

(1) No Assurance of Guarantee:

Securities investments are subject to market risk and there is no assurance or guarantee that the Objectives of the PMS products/clients will be achieved.

(2) No Reliance on Past Performance: •

Past performance of the portfolio manager does not indicate the future performance of the same or performance of any other future portfolio(s) of the Portfolio Manager.

- (3) Risks arising from the investment objective, investment strategy and asset allocation are as Follows:
 - i. The past performance of the Portfolio Manager in any portfolio is not indicative of the future performance in the same portfolio or in any other portfolio which currently exists or which may be offered in the future. There is no assurance that past performances indicated in earlier portfolios will be repeated. Investors are not being offered any guaranteed or indicative returns through any of the portfolios.
 - ii. The names of the portfolio do not in any manner indicate their prospects or returns. The performance in the equity portfolios may be adversely affected by the performance of individual companies' changes that may take place in the equity market place and any industry specific and macro economic factors that may also affect the performance of the portfolio.
 - iii. Any and all risks which are already inherent and pertain to underlying liquid portfolios, debt investments and other fixed income securities, and which include, but are not limited to, changes in credit rating, trading volumes, settlement periods and transfer procedures, price/interest-rate risk and credit risk, volatility and liquidity in the money markets, pressure on the exchange rate of the rupee, basis risk, spread risk and reinvestment risk, offshore investments, derivative investments and security lending.



- iv. Technology stocks and some other investments in niche sectors run the risk of volatility, high valuation, obsolescence and low liquidity.
- v. Risk attached with the use of derivatives products are as follows:

 The portfolio manager may use derivative products as may be permitted by SEBI from time to time. As and when the portfolios trade in the derivatives market there are risk factors and issues concerning the use of derivatives that investors should understand. Derivative products are specialized instruments that require investment techniques and risk analysis different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The use of a derivative requires an understanding not only of the underlying instrument but also of the derivative itself. Derivatives require maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered into, the ability to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the portfolio and other related capabilities. There is the possibility that a loss may be sustained by the portfolio as a result of the failure of another party (usually referred to as the "counter party") to comply with the terms of the derivatives contract. Other risks in using derivatives include market risk, valuation risk, liquidity risk and basis risk. Also, it is to be noted that the market for derivative instruments is nascent in India and there may be some inherent risks attached to it as all the parties dealing with the derivative products are not sophisticated investors.
- vi. Each portfolio will be exposed to various risks depending on the investment objective, investment strategy and the asset allocation. The investment objective, investment strategy and the asset allocation may differ from client to client. However, generally, highly concentrated portfolios with lesser number of stocks, generally, will be more volatile than a portfolio with a larger number of stocks. Portfolios with higher allocation to equities will be subject to higher volatility than portfolios with low allocation to equities.
- vii. Risks may also arise out of non-diversification, if any, as the diversified portfolios (allocated across companies and broad sectors), generally, tend to be less volatile than non-diversified portfolios.
- viii. Tax Laws may change, which may, in turn, affect the return on investment.
- ix. Since the portfolio may invest predominantly in Mutual Funds and other instruments registered with SEBI, its performance may depend on that of the underlying portfolios. Any change in the investment policies or fundamental attributes of underlying portfolios, could affect performance of portfolios.
- x. For a sharp increase in the stock market indices during the defined period, the return on the portfolio might be comparatively less, due to certain inherent indices driven price changes which may not be applicable to the current stock held within the portfolio managed by us.
- xi. Upon a sharp downturn in the market during the defined period, the portfolio manager might at his own discretion invest the whole value of the portfolio in money-market and/or in the debt securities market for more stable returns on the portfolio. Subsequently, the portfolio will not be exposed to equities for the rest of the duration of the portfolio.

(4) General Risk:

The Client understands and accepts the risk of total loss of value of its Assets or recovery thereof only through an expensive legal process due to factors which by way of illustration include default or non performance of a third party, a company's refusal to register a Security due to legal stay or otherwise, disputes raised by third parties etc.



7. Client Representation

1. As per specified format under SEBI regulation:

Category of Clients	No. of Clients	Funds Managed (Rs. In Crores)	Discretionary/Non-Discretionary/Mul Manager/Investment Advisory Service	
Associate/Group Companies				
As at March 31, 2020	2	1.83	Discretionary / Non Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2019	0	0.00	Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2018	1	0.23	Discretionary	
<u>Others</u>				
As at March 31, 2020	258	65.85	Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2020	5583	5222.50	Non Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2019	260	135.26	Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2019	3545	3810.94	Non Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2018	347	118.27	Discretionary	
As at March 31, 2018	1987	2052.17	Non Discretionary	

 Disclosures in respect of transactions with related parties as per the standards specified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on the basis of the audited financial results of March 31st,,2020

A. Parties where control exists:

Name of the Related Party where control exists & with whom transactions have taken place	Nature of Relationship	
Anand Rathi Financial Services Limited	Parent Company	
Anand Rathi Global Finance Limited	Holding Company	
Anand Rathi Share and Stock Brokers Limited	Fellow Subsidiary	
Anand Rathi Wealth Services Limited *	Fellow Subsidiary	
Anand Rathi IT Private Limited	Other Related	

The details of transactions with related parties are given in Annexure I.



B. Other related Parties wherein transactions have taken place during the financial year 2019-2020. - Not Applicable

a. Financial Performance of the Portfolio Manager

Based on the audited financial statements for the FY15, FY16, FY17, FY18, FY19 and FY20, the financial performance of the Portfolio Manager is as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs

	Einnneiel	Financial Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year					
Particulars	Year ended	Financial Year ended	Financial Year ended	Financial Year ended	Financial Year ended	Financial Year ended	
	31-03-2020	31-03-2019	31-03-2018	31-Mar-17	31-Mar-16	31-Mar-15	
Total Income	1381.32	2,404.76	1,530.18	F 700 07			
Profit/(Loss)		Algebra (1,330.18	5,789.27	3,962.23	1,073.72	
Profit/(Loss) before Tax	74.75	15.79	130.37	226.58	(680.64)	34.25	
Profit/(Loss) after Tax	16.90	14.98	27.71	149.19	(469.26)	23.59	
Net Worth	864.52	913.54	898.57	870.87	721.68	590.93	
Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.)	0.17	0.15	0.28	1.51	(4.74)	0.40	
Dividend	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil	
Paid up equity share capital	990.59	990.59	990.59	990.59	990.59	590.59	

8. Portfolio Management Performance of the Portfolio Manager

A. Performance of Portfolios as on March 31, 2020 for Equity Products

Portfolio Name	Type of Service	Date of Inception	April 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020	April 1, 2018 – March 31, 2019	April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018
Benchmark	Mary Report				
			10 0 0 0 0 0		
Wealth Multiplier	Discretionary	09-Jul-10	N.A.	N.A.	8.35%
MIDCAP			N.A.	N.A.	13.24%
Portfolio Plus	Discretionary	19-Oct-11	-31.46%	-3.30%	12.98%
CNXMIDCAP			-35.90%	-2.66%	9.07%
Portfolio Plus-NRI	Discretionary	12-Jun-13	N.A.	. N.A.	13.13%
CNXMIDCAP			N.A.	N.A.	9.07%



Portfolio Name	Type of Service	Date of Inception	April 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020	April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018	April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018
Benchmark					
Impress Portfolio	Discretionary	31-May-17	-24.04%	-6.13%	8.45%
CNX 500			-27.60%	8.43%	7.00%
Impress Portfolio - NRI	Discretionary	28-Jul-17	-20.41%	-6.26%	4.58%
CNX 500			-27.60%	8.43%	2.00%
MNC Portfolio	Discretionary	31-Mar-18	2.80%	4.76%	-0.02%
NIFTY MNC			-17.14%	-2.97%	-0.47%
MNC Portfolio - NRI	Discretionary	31-Mar-18	-3.19	N.A.	-0.02%
NIFTY MNC			-17.14%	-2.97%	-0.47%

N.A. - Not Applicable

Note:

- 1. The performance is calculated using weighted average method for respective portfolios.
- 2. The returns for the specified period(s) are calculated based on valuation of securities on the respective valuation dates. Returns for period less than one year are absolute returns and for period greater than one year is compounded annualized.
- 3. Returns are adjusted for inflows & outflows.
- 4. Returns are before charging of expenses.



B. Performance of Portfolios as on March 31, 2020 for Structure products

Portfolio Name	Type of Service	Date of Inception	April 1, 2019 – March 31, 2020	April 1, 2018 – March 31, 2019	April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2018
Benchmark					32,2010
Non Discretionan D					
Non-Discretionary Dynamic Series	Non - Discretionary	12-Mar-10	-3.49%	12.54%	11.52%
NIFTY			-26.03%	14.93%	10.25%
Debt Enhancer Portfolio	Non - Discretionary	10-Sep-18	-16.77	N.A.	N.A.
NIFTY			-26.03	N.A.	N.A.
The Alpha Strategy Portfolio	Non - Discretionary	05-Jul-19	-21.83	N.A.	N.A.
NIFTY			-28.03	N.A.	N.A.
		Part of the Maria Mag			MARKET STATE

N.A. – Not Applicable Notes:

- The returns for the specified period(s) are calculated based on valuation of securities on the respective valuation dates.
 Returns for period less than one year are absolute returns and for period greater than one year is compounded annualized.
- 2. For purpose of valuation of non-convertible debentures / equity linked debentures, the Portfolio Managers have relied on value of such securities and value of benchmark on the valuation date provided by the issuer of the respective securities. As mentioned by the issuer of the security, for the purpose of valuation, the security value for Structured Products / Capital Protection Portfolios given above are indicative and does not reflect the returns that could be generated on the final valuation / redemption date. The returns on the investment on the maturity date can be lower than the returns indicated above as the returns are attributed to contingent conditions.
- 3. Returns are net of upfront fees (upfront fees not considered for calculation of returns).
- 4. Returns are before charging of expenses.

9. Nature of Expenses

The following are indicative types of costs and expenses for clients availing the Portfolio Management services. The exact basis of charge relating to each of the following services shall be annexed to the Portfolio Management Agreement entered into with the specific Clients. The expenses incurred shall be directly debited on actual expense incurred basis to the Client's portfolio as and when the same become due for payment on a monthly basis.



Specific expenses related to Equity/Debt Portfolios

a. Management Fees

Management Fees relate to the Portfolio Management Services offered to Clients. The fee may be a fixed charge or a percentage of the quantum of funds managed or linked to the portfolio returns achieved, or a combination of both. In the event of it being a fixed charge or a percentage of the quantum of funds managed, it shall not exceed 3 % p.a. of the Client's portfolio corpus. With regard to the management fees linked to portfolio returns achieved, the terms will be decided as per the PMS Agreement.

High Water Mark Principle: High Water Mark shall be the highest value that the portfolio/account has reached. Value of the portfolio for computation of high watermark shall be taken to be the value on the date when performance fees are charged. For the purpose of charging performance fee, the frequency shall not be less than quarterly. The portfolio manager shall charge performance based fee only on increase in portfolio value in excess of the previously achieved high water mark.

b. Entry Fees/Upfront Fee

Entry/Upfront fees relates to entry charges are payable to the Portfolio Manager at the time of subscription or additional subscription. The terms to charge entry/upfront fees will be decided as per the Client agreement or as per product mandate.

c. Exit Fees

An exit fee relates to exit charges are payable to the Portfolio Manager at the time of withdrawal or partial withdrawal. The terms to charge exit fees will be decided as per the Client agreement or as per product mandate.

II. Other General Expenses applicable to all type of Portfolios

Custodian/Depository Fees

The charges relating to opening and operation of dematerialized accounts, custody and transfer charges for shares, bonds and units, dematerialization and other charges in connection with the operation and management of the depository accounts.

b. Registrar and transfer agent fee

Charges payable to registrars and transfer agents in connection with effecting transfer of securities and bonds including stamp charges cost of affidavits, notary charges, postage stamp and courier charges.

c. Brokerage and transaction costs

The brokerage charges and other charges like Service Tax and Education and Secondary and Higher Education Cess thereon, Stamp Duty, transaction costs, Securities Transaction Tax, Turnover Tax, Exit and entry loads on the purchase and sale of shares, stocks, bonds, debt, deposits, units and other financial instruments.

d. Securities Lending and Borrowing charges

The charges pertaining to the lender of securities, costs of borrowing, including interest and costs associated with transfer of securities connected with the lending and borrowing transfer operations.

e. Certification and professional charges

Charges payable for outsourced professional services like accounting, taxation and legal services, notarizations and similar services which maybe applicable for transactions of this kind, for certifications, attestations required by bankers or regulatory authorities.

f. Incidental Expenses

Charges in connection with the courier expenses, postal, telegraphic, opening and operation of bank accounts shall also be charged at actual. Further, all incidental and ancillary expenses not covered above, but incurred by the Portfolio Manager on behalf of the client, for Portfolio Management and expenses incurred by the Portfolio Manager in terms of the Agreement shall be charged to the Client.

g. Fees, Entry /Exit Load & charges in respect of Investment in Mutual Fund

Mutual Funds shall be recovering expense, entry /exit load and other incidental expenses along with service tax, if any, on such recoveries and such fee, entry /exit load and charges including service tax on such recoveries shall be paid to the asset management companies of these mutual funds on the client accounts. Such fees and charges are in addition to the portfolio management fee described above.

Important Note:

- i. The Portfolio Manager shall deduct directly from the Cash Account of the Client all the fees / costs specified above or require the Client to make the payments separately to the Portfolio Manager, at the option of the Portfolio Manager. Other expenses which could be attributable to the Portfolio Management Services would also be directly deducted and the Client would be provided details of the same.
- The fees charged for rendering Portfolio Management Services do not guarantee or assure, either directly or indirectly, any return on the investment made by the Client.
- iii. The exact fees charged to the Client relating to each of the above services will vary depending upon the exact nature of the services to be provided. These shall be annexed to the Agreement depending upon the services to be provided by the Portfolio Manager to the Client at the time of execution of the Agreement with the Client.
- iv. Any revision in the charges shall be made after obtaining prior permission from the Client.
- v. Service tax and other statutory charges applicable will also be levied separately.

10. Taxation

A. Tax Implications for clients

The information set out below outlines the tax implications based on relevant provisions of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 ("the Act").

(ii) General

In view of the individual nature of tax consequences on the income, capital gains or otherwise, arising from investments, each Client is advised to consult / his / her / its tax advisor with respect to the specific tax consequences to him/ her / it of participation in the portfolio management services.

The Portfolio Manager shall not be responsible for assisting in or completing the fulfillment of the client's tax obligations.



(iii) Tax deduction at source

Tax is required to be deducted at source for non-residents by the authorized dealer. If required, tax will be withheld for non-residents. If any tax is required to be withheld on account of any future legislation, the Portfolio Manager shall be obliged to act in accordance with the regulatory requirements in this regard.

(iv) Default in furnishing the PAN

Wherever tax has been deducted at source, the deductee is required to mandatorily furnish his PAN to the deductor; failing which the deductor shall deduct tax at source at higher of the following rates:

- a. the rate prescribed in the Act;
- b. at the rate in force i.e., the rate mentioned in the Finance Act; or
- at the rate of 20%.

In order to reduce compliance burden, the Finance Act, 2016 amended the provisions of section 206AA of the Act (w.e.f. June 1, 2016) to provide relaxation from higher withholding tax rate while making payment to nonresident deductees in the absence of PAN, subject to fulfillment of prescribed conditions.

(v) CBDT notification

- Rule 37BC of the Rules provides that the provisions of section 206AA of the Act shall not apply on following payments made to nonresident deductees who do not have PAN in India:
- 1) Interest;
- 2) Royalty;
- 3) Fee for Technical Services; and
- 4) Payments on transfer of any capital asset.
- In respect of the above specified payments, the non-resident deductee shall be required to furnish following details and documents:
- 1) Name, e-mail id, contact number;
- 2) Address in the country of residence;
- 3) Tax Residency Certificate (TRC), if the law of country of residence provides for such certificate; and
- 4) Tax Identification Number (TIN) in the country of residence. Where TIN is not available, a unique identification number is required to be furnished through which the deductee is identified in the country of residence.

(v) Advance tax installment obligations

It shall be the Client's responsibility to meet the obligation on account of advance tax installments payable on the due dates under the Income tax Act.

(vii) Securities Transaction Tax

Securities Transaction Tax (hereinafter 'STT") is applicable on transactions of such purchase or sale of equity shares in a company or ETF or a derivative or units of Equity Oriented Fund entered into on a recognized stock exchange and sale of units of Equity Oriented Fund to the Mutual Fund.



The STT rates as applicable as per the Finance Bill, 2017 Direct Tax:

Securities Transaction Tax	Rate.	Levied on
NSE/BSE Cash Charges	70	
Securities Trans.Tax (Delivery)	0.10	Purchaser / Seller
Securities Trans.Tax (Square Off)	0.025	Seller
Securities Trans.Tax (Equity Oriented Funds)	0.001	Seller
NSE/BSE Derivatives Charges		
STT on Sale of an option in securities on premium price	0.05	Seller
STT Sale of an option in securities, where option is exercised on setl price	0.125	Purchaser
STT on Sale of a futures in securities	0.01	Seller
Sale of units of an equity oriented fund to the Mutual Fund	0.001	Seller

B. Tax Implications to Different Categories of Investors

Income arising from purchase and sale of shares (for the sake of brevity, the term "shares" has been used below as an illustration but the same includes other types of securities) can give rise to business income or capital gains in the hands of the investor.

The issue of income characterization as above is essentially a question of fact and is dependent on whether the shares are held as Business / Trading assets or as Capital Assets. Based on judicial decisions, all of the following factors and principles need to be considered while determining the nature of assets as above:

- Motive for the purchase of shares.
- Frequency of transactions and the length of period of holding of the shares
- Treatment of the shares and profit or loss on their sale in the accounts of the assesses.
- Source of funds out of which the shares were acquired borrowed or own.
- Existence of an object clause permitting trading in shares relevant only in the case of corporate.
- Acquisition of the shares from primary market or secondary market.
- Infrastructure employed for the share transactions by the client including the appointment of managers, etc.

Any single factor discussed above in isolation cannot be conclusive to determine the exact nature of the shares. All factors and principles need to be construed harmoniously. Further, the background of the investor (Professional vs. a trader in shares) would also be a relevant factor in determining the nature of the shares.

Central Board of Direct Taxes has clarified that, it is possible for a tax payer to have two portfolios, i.e., an investment portfolio comprising of securities which are to be treated as capital assets and a trading portfolio comprising of stock-in-trade which are to be treated as trading assets. Where an assessee has two portfolios, the assessee may have income under both heads i.e., capital gains as well as business income.

Central Board of Direct Taxes advised that no single principle would be decisive and the total effect of all the principles should be considered to determine whether, in a given case, the shares are held by the assessee as investment or stock-in-trade.

In view of the above, the profits or gains arising from transaction in securities could be taxed either as "Profits or Gains of Business or Profession" under section 28 of the Act or as "Capital Gains" under section 45 of the Act.



C. Tax Implications where Transaction in Securities is in the nature of Investments

Where investment under the Portfolio Management Services is treated as investment, then the profit or loss from transfer of securities shall be taxed as Capital Gains under Section 45 of the Act.

Dividends referred to in section 115-O will be exempt under section 10(34). Dividend other than that referred to in section 115-O and interest income from securities will be taxed under the head Income from Other Sources.

Income from units of Mutual Funds specified under clause 10(23D) is exempt from tax under section 10(35) of the Act, Fürther, it has been clarified that income arising from transfer of units of Mutual Fund shall not be exempt under section 10(35).

(ii) Long Term Capital Gains

Section 112A of the Act provides that long-term capital gains in excess of Rs.1 lakh arising on sale of Equity Shares of a company or units of Equity Oriented Fund entered into a recognized stock exchange and on sale of units of Equity Oriented Fund to the Mutual Fund are chargeable to income tax at a concessional rate of 10% plus applicable surcharge and cess, provided such transactions are entered on a recognized stock exchange and are chargeable to STT. Further, Section 48 provides that no deduction shall be allowed in respect of STT paid for the purpose of computing Capital Gains.

The mode of computation of capital gains would generally be as follows:

Particulars	Rs.
Sale Consideration	XXX
Less: Expenses on Transfer	XX
Net Consideration	XXX
Less: Cost of Acquisition (Cost as on 31.01.2018 or Actual cost whichever is HIGHER)*	XX
Capital Gains	XX

^{*} Provided the shares or equity oriented mutual funds are acquired before 31.01.2018.

Section 112 of the Act provides that where the total income of an assessee includes any income, arising from the transfer of a long-term capital asset, which is chargeable under the head "Capital gains", the tax payable by the assessee on the total income shall be the aggregate of—

✓ For individuals and HUF's

- (i) the amount of income-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such long-term capital gains, had the total income as so reduced been his total income; and
- (ii) the amount of income-tax calculated on such long-term capital gains at the rate of twenty per cent: Provided that where the total income as reduced by such long-term capital gains is below the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax, then, such long-term capital gains shall be reduced by the amount by which the total income as so reduced falls short of the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax and the tax on the balance of such long-term capital gains shall be computed at the rate of twenty per cent;



✓ For Indian Companies

- (i) the amount of income-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such long-term capital gains, had the total income as so reduced been its total income; and
 - ✓ the amount of income-tax calculated on such long-term capital gains at the rate of [twenty] per cent:

For Non-resident Indians

the amount of income-tax payable on the total income as reduced by the amount of such long-term capital gains, had the total income as so reduced been its total income; and

- (ii) the amount of income-tax calculated on long-term capital gains [except where such gain arises from transfer of capital asset referred to in sub-clause (iii)] at the rate of twenty per cent; and
- (iii) the amount of income-tax on long-term capital gains arising from the transfer of a capital asset, being unlisted securities, calculated at the rate of ten per cent on the capital gains in respect of such asset as computed without giving effect to the first and second proviso to section 48;]

Short Term Capital Gains

Section 111A of the Act provides that short-term capital gains arising on sale of Equity Shares of a company or units of Equity Oriented Fund entered into a recognized stock exchange and on sale of units of Equity Oriented Fund to the Mutual Fund are chargeable to income tax at a concessional rate of 15% plus applicable surcharge and cess, provided such transactions are entered on a recognized stock exchange and are chargeable to STT. Further, Section 48 provides that no deduction shall be allowed in respect of STT paid for the purpose of computing Capital Gains. In respect of capital gains not chargeable under Section 111A, the provisions for taxation of short-term capital gains for different categories of assessees are explained hereunder:

Short Term Capital Gains in respect of shares of a company, units of Mutual Fund and any other listed securities held for a period of not more than 12 months and unlisted securities (other than shares of a company and units of Mutual Fund) held for a period of not more than 36 months is added to the total income. Total income including short-term capital gains is chargeable to tax as per the relevant slab rates.

The mode of computation of capital gains would generally be as follows:

Particulars	Rs.
Sale Consideration	XXX
Less: Expenses on Transfer	XX
Net Consideration	XXX
Less: Cost of Acquisition	XX
Capital Gains	XX

(iv) Profits and Gains of Business or Profession

- a. If the investment under the Portfolio Management Services is regarded as "Business / Trading Asset" then the gain / loss arising there from is likely to be taxed as income from business.
- b. Dividend from securities referred to in section 115-O, will be exempt under Section 10(34) of the Act. Dividends other than that referred to in section 115-O and interest income will be taxable as Income from



Other Sources. Income from units of Mutual Funds specified under clause 10(23D) is exempt from tax under section 10(35) of the Act. Further, it has been clarified that income arising from transfer of units of Mutual Fund shall not be exempt under-section 10(35).

In the Budget of 2017, a new section 115BBDA was introduced to provide that any dividend income from a domestic company, exceeding Rs. 10 lakhs in the case of an individual, Hindu undivided family or a firm who is a resident in India shall be chargeable to tax at the rate of 10 per cent. It further provided that no deduction in respect of any expenditure or allowance or set off of loss shall be allowed while computing the dividend income. Further, corresponding amendment was made under section 10(34) of the Act to provide that if tax is payable under the proposed section 115BBDA of the Act on dividend received, such dividend income would not be treated as exempt income.

- c. As per section 40(a) (ib) of the Act any sum paid on account of STT will not be allowed as deduction in computing the income under the head "Profit and gains of business or profession" This provision was applicable upto Assessment Year 2008-09, w.e.f. 1.04.2009 the said clause has been deleted. From the assessment year 2009-10, where income referred to above is treated as Business Income, the person is eligible for deduction u/s 36(1)(xv), for the amount of STT paid.
- d. Section 88E of the Act gives rebate in respect of STT and provides that persons having business income arising from taxable securities transactions shall be entitled to a deduction from the amount of Income tax on such income of an amount equal to the STT paid by him in respect of such transactions entered in the course of his business. However, this rebate available under section 88 E of the income tax act, 1961 was discontinued w.e.f April 01, 2009. Section 36 of income tax act is amended so as to allow STT paid by assessee trader as deductible expenditure from business income w.e.f April 01, 2009.

(v) Tax treaty benefits for Non - Resident Indian

Section 90 of the Act provides that taxation of non-resident Clients would be governed by the provisions of the Act, or those of a Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement ("DTAA") that the Government of India has entered into with the Government of any other country of which the non-resident investors are tax resident. The provisions of the DTAA prevail over those of the Act if they are more beneficial to the taxpayer. Hence, the above rates are subject to applicable DTAA benefits, if applicable. In order for the non-resident Client to obtain the benefit of a lower rate or nil rates available under a DTAA, the Client will be required to provide with a certificate confirming the eligibility for such DTAA benefits.

D. Tax Slab

- E. The rates of income-tax have been kept same; there are no changes in rates of income-tax in this Finance Bill.
 - For a resident senior citizen (who is 60 years or more at any time during the previous year but not more than 80 years on the last day of the previous year)

Net Income Range	Income Tax Rate (Current)
Up to Rs. 3,00,000	Nil
Rs. 3,00,001 - Rs. 5,00,000	5%
Rs. 5,00,001 - Rs. 10,00,000	Rs. 10000+20%
Rs. 10,00,000 - Rs 50,00,000	Rs.1,10,000+30%
Rs. 50,00,000 - Rs 100,00,000	Rs 13,10,000 + 30%
Above Rs 100,00,000	Rs 28,10,000 + 30%



For resident senior citizen (who is 80 years or more at any time during the previous year)

Net Income Range	Income Tax Rate (Current)
Up to Rs. 5,00,000	Nil
Rs. 5,00,001 - Rs. 10,00,000	20%
Rs. 10,00,000 - Rs 50,00,000	Rs.1,00,000+30%
Rs. 50,00,000 - Rs 100,00,000	Rs 13,00,000 + 30%
Above Rs 100,00,000	Rs 28,00,000 + 30%

For any other individual, every HUF/AOP/BOI/artificial juridical person -

Net Income Range	Income Tax Rate (Current)
Up to Rs.2,50,000	Nil
Rs.2,50,001 - Rs. 5,00,000	5%
Rs. 5,00,001 - Rs. 10,00,000	Rs.12,500+20%
Rs. 10,00,000 - Rs 50,00,000	Rs.1,12,500+30%
Rs. 50,00,000 - Rs 100,00,000	Rs 13,12,500 + 30%
Above Rs 100,00,000	Rs 28,12,500 + 30%

· Rebate:

 A resident individual (whose net income does not exceed Rs. 5,00,000) can avail rebate under section 87A. It is deductible from income-tax before calculating education cess. The amount of rebate is 100 per cent of income-tax or Rs. 12,500, whichever is less.

Health and Education Cess:

The amount of income-tax and the applicable surcharge shall be further increased by health and education cess calculated at the rate of four percent of such income-tax and surcharge.

Surcharge:

For any individual/HUF/AOP/BOI/artificial juridical person —

Net Income Range	Income Tax Rate (Current)
Rs. 50,00,000 - Rs.10,000,000	10%
Rs.10,000,000 - Rs.20,000,000	15%
Rs.20,000,000 - Rs.50,000,000	25%
Above Rs.50,000,000	37%

Companies:

Tax Rates (%) for Existing Domestic Companies (if lower tax rate ontion not exercised).

Income Slab	Domestic (Turnover > Rs.400 Crore during the FY 2017-18)		Domestic (Other domestic companies (in existence on or before 30-Sep-2019)		Foreign	
	Normal	MAT	Normal	MAT	Normal	MAT
Upto 1 Crore	31.20	19.24	26	19.24	41.6	19.24
Exceeding 1 Crore less than 10 Crore	33.38	20.59	27.82	20.59	42.43	19.62
Exceeding 10 Crore	34.94	21.55	29.12	21.55	43.26	20.20

Tax Rates (%) for Existing Domestic Companies (if lower tax rate option exercised):



Marginal Rate of tax would be 25.17% #

Corporate Tax: 22%, Surcharge: 10% and Cess: 4%

Condition for availing lower tax rate:

- 1. Not eligible for any tax incentives/exemptions
- 2. Not required to pay MAT
- 3. Option has to be exercised one time on or before the due date of filing of tax return
- 4. Option once exercised can't be withdrawn.

New Domestic Manufacturing Companies incorporated on or after 01-Oct-2019

Marginal Rate of tax would be 17.16% #

Corporate Tax: 15%, Surcharge: 10% and Cess: 4%

Condition for availing lower tax rate:

- 1. Not eligible for any tax incentives/exemptions
- 2. Not required to pay MAT
- 3. Option has to be exercised one time on or before the due date of filing of tax return
- 4. Option once exercised can't be withdrawn.
- 5. Has to commence manufacturing on or before 31.03.2023

✓ Domestic company:-

- 1. The existing surcharge of 7% in case of a domestic company shall continue to be levied if the total income of the domestic company exceeds Rs. 1 Crore but does not exceed Rs.10 Crore.
- 2. The surcharge at the rate of 12% shall be levied if the total income of the domestic company exceeds Rs. 10 Crore.

√ Foreign company:-

- 1. In case of companies other than domestic companies, the existing surcharge of 2% shall continue to be levied if the total income exceeds Rs. 1 Crore but does not exceed Rs. 10 Crore.
- 2. The surcharge at the rate of 5% shall be levied if the total income of the company other than domestic company exceeds Rs 10 Crore.

3. Health and Education Cess:

The amount of income-tax and the applicable surcharge shall be further increased by health and education cess calculated at the rate of four percent of such income-tax and surcharge.

(**Note:** However, the total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on total income exceeding Rs. 1 Crore but not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore, shall not exceed the total amount payable as income-tax on a total income of Rs. 1 Crore, by more than the amount of income that exceeds Rs. 1 Crore.

The total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on total income exceeding Rs. 10 Crore, shall not exceed the total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on a total income of Rs. 10 Crore, by more than the amount of income that exceeds Rs. 10 Crore.)

In respect of Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) fulfilling conditions laid down under section 115AD of the Act, income (other than the dividend referred to in section 115-O) received in respect of securities other than units of mutual fund will be chargeable at the rate of 20% plus surcharge and cess, as may be applicable.



F. Losses under the Head Business Income

In the case of loss under the head "Profits and Gains of Business of Profession', it can be set off against the income from any other source under the same head or income under any other head (except income from Salary) in the same assessment year.

Further, if such loss cannot be set off against any other head in the same assessment year, then it will be carried forward and shall be set off against the profits and gains of the business, within the period of eight subsequent assessment years.

According to section 94(7) of the Act, if any person buys or acquires shares within a period of three months prior to the record date fixed for declaration of dividend or distribution of income and sells or transfers the same within a period of three months from such record date, then losses arising from such sale to the extent dividend or income received or receivable on such shares, which are exempt under the Act, will be ignored for the purpose of computing his income chargeable to tax.

According to section 94(7) of the Act, if any person buys or acquires shares within a 12 period of three months prior to the record date fixed for declaration of dividend or distribution of income and sells or transfers the same within a period of Nine months from such record date, then capital losses arising from such sale to the extent of income received or receivable on such units, which are exempt under the Act, will be ignored for the purpose of computing his income chargeable to tax.

(i) Dividend stripping

According to the provisions of Section 94(7) of the Act, losses arising from the sale / redemption of securities or units purchased within 3 months prior to the record date (for entitlement of dividends) and sold within 9 months (in case of units) / 3 months (in case of securities), after such date, is disallowed to the extent of income on such securities or units (other than on sale / redemption) is claimed as tax exempt.

(ii) Bonus stripping

According to the provisions of Section 94(8) of the Act, if an investor purchases units within 3 months before the record date (for entitlement of bonus) and sells/ redeems the units within 9 months after that date and by virtue of holding the original units, he becomes entitled to bonus units, then the loss arising on transfer of original units shall be ignored for the purpose of computing his income chargeable to tax. In fact, the loss so ignored will be treated as cost of acquisition of such bonus units.

Note: As the Current Year Finance Bill 2019 is passed by the Parliament on 1st August, 2019, the Amendments have been incorporated in above.



11. Accounting Policies:

The Portfolio Management Services comprises of discretionary and Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management and hence, the portfolio transaction per se will not reflect in the books of the Portfolio Manager. However, the Fee based income of the Portfolio Manager will be accounted based on the guidelines issued from time to time by SEBI/Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Books and Records are separately maintained in the name of the client to account for the assets and any additions, income, receipts and disbursements in connection therewith, as provided by the SEBI (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993 as amended from time to time.

Following Accounting Policies are proposed to be followed for the purpose of maintaining books of accounts & records of the Client.

I. Basis of Accounting

Financial statement of the Client under Portfolio Management Services (other than for Advisory Services) shall be prepared and maintained as per the accrual basis of accounting.

A. Maintenance of Client Account:

- a. The Portfolio Manager shall keep and maintain proper books of accounts, records and documents for each Client.
- b. The Portfolio Manager shall segregate each client's funds and portfolio of securities and keep them separately from its own funds and securities. It shall provide monthly transaction statements to clients so as to enable the clients to see the transactions done in their respective client account.
- c. The funds of the client, investments/disinvestments, accretion like interest, dividend, bonus or any other beneficial interest and expenses/TDS on the portfolio of the client shall be properly accounted for and details thereof shall be properly reflected in the clients' account.
- d. In the event of aggregation of purchases or sales for economy of scale interest, the Portfolio Manager shall do allocation on pro rata basis at weighted average price of the day's transaction. The Portfolio Manager will not keep open position in respect of allocation of sales or purchases in a day.
- e. The Portfolio Manager shall not hold the listed securities, belonging to the portfolio account in its own name on behalf of its client.

B. Investments:

- a. The cost of Investments acquired or purchased shall include brokerage, stamp duty and any charge customarily except for Securities Transaction Tax included in the broker's bought note. In respect of privately placed debt instruments any front-end discount offered may be reduced from the cost of the investment.
- b. Subscriptions to primary market issues shall be recognized as investments on allotment.
- c. Bonus shares to which the portfolio becomes entitled shall be recognized only when the original shares on which the bonus entitlement accrues are traded on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai on an ex-bonus basis. Similarly, rights entitlements shall be recognized only when the original shares on which the right entitlement accrues are traded on the stock exchange on an ex-right basis. If the investment quantity for any Client results in fractional holdings, pursuant to split or de-merger or any other corporate action, the Portfolio Manager, at his discretion, may sell or buy fractional units (subject to availability of cash) to make the investment of each Client in marketable lots.
- d. Securities brought in by the client, the same is accounted for in PMS accounts on the date on which the stock is credited to the depository account shall be valued at the closing price of the security at NSE. If closing price on NSE is not available, BSE price would be considered. Accordingly, date of credit as aforesaid shall be construed as date of acquisition and cost as stated above is considered as cost of acquisition for the purpose of computing gains / loss.



e. In case Assets are redeemed in form of Securities, the same will be valued at the closing price of the stock on NSE on the previous working day of the date on which stock is recorded as corpus outward. If closing price on NSE is not available, BSE price would be considered. The Assets so redeemed in form of Securities will be shown as investment amount returned to the Client for the purpose of reporting to the Client and shall not form part of the report of computation of capital gain. However, for the purpose of computing performance / returns by the Portfolio Manager, date of debit as aforesaid shall be taken as date of sale and the value as stated above will be taken as the value received on sale.

C. Income & Expenses:

- a. Dividend income earned by the Portfolio shall be recognized, not on the date the dividend is declared, but on the date the share is quoted on an ex-dividend basis. For investments, which are not quoted on the stock exchange, dividend income would be recognized on the date of declaration of dividend. Portfolio Manager do not hold POA to operate client's bank account linked to their respective demat accounts, dividend amount is shown as corpus outward on receipt of confirmation from client that dividend is actually received in their bank account
- b. In respect of all interest-bearing investments, income shall be accrued on a day-to-day basis as it is earned. Therefore, when such investments are purchased, interest paid for the period from the last interest due date up to the date of purchase should not be treated as a cost of purchase but shall be debited to interest Recoverable Account.
 - Similarly, interest received at the time of sale for the period from the last interest due date up to the date of sale must not be treated as an addition to sale value but shall be credited to Interest Recoverable Account.
- c. Transactions for purchase or sale of investment shall be recognized as of the trade date and not as of the settlement date, so that the effect of all investments traded during a financial year are recorded and reflected in the financial statements for that year. Where investment transactions take place outside the stock market for example, acquisition through private placement or purchases or sales through private treaty, the transaction would be recorded, in the event of a purchase, as of the date on which the portfolio obtains an enforceable obligation to pay the price or in the event of a sale. When the portfolio obtains an enforceable obligation to pay the price or, in the event of a sale, when the portfolio obtains an enforceable right to collect the proceeds of sale or an enforceable obligation to deliver the instruments sold.
- d. In determining the holding cost of investments the "Weighted average price (WAP)" method shall be followed for each security and the gains or loss on sale of investments, "First in first out (FIFO)" method shall be followed.
- e. Unrealised gain/losses are the differences, between the current market value/Net Asset Value and the historical cost of the securities.
- f. Investment Management fees and other charges shall be accrued and charged as agreed in the agreement between the Portfolio Manager and the Client. All other expenses payable by the client shall be accrued as and when Liability is incurred.
- g. Securities transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. The cost of the investments acquired or purchased would include brokerage, stamp charges and any charges customarily included in the broker's contract note or levied by any statue except STT (Securities Transaction Tax). Similarly, in case of Sale Transaction, the abovementioned charges will be deducted from the sale price.
- h. In respect of privately placed debt instruments, any frontend discount offered shall be reduced from the cost of the investment. However, In case where such securities are issued by issuer at discount to the face value & such discount is retained with the portfolio manager as management fees, then such discount amount is added to the cost of acquisition as transaction based fees.



Portfolio Valuation

Listed/Traded Shares:

a. Investments in Equity or Equity Related instruments and Debt Securities listed on a recognized stock exchange are valued at the last quoted closing price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). If on a particular valuation date, a security is not traded on NSE, the value at which it is traded on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) is used or any recognized stock exchange. If a particular security is not listed on the NSE, then it is valued at the last quoted closing price on the BSE on the valuation date or on a recognized stock exchange as the case may be.

Not traded on Valuation date:

- b. Non-traded and thinly traded equity securities, including those not traded within thirty days prior to the valuation date are valued at fair value as determined by Anand Rathi Advisors Limited.
- **Unlisted Shares:**

Equity securities awaiting listing are would be valued at cost of acquisition

d. Bonus Shares & Right Issue:

Bonus shares to which the portfolio becomes entitled shall be recognized only when the original shares on which the bonus entitlement accrues are traded on the NSE on an ex-bonus basis or the BSE (if the scrip is not traded on the valuation date on the NSE) as the case may be. Cost of bonus shares is taken as Zero. Similarly, rights entitlements shall be recognized only when the original shares on which the right entitlement accrues are traded on the stock exchange on an ex-right basis.

e. Valuation of Suspended/Non traded Share / Corporate Actions

In case a security is suspended/non-traded/ awaiting Corporate Actions, then the Valuation of such security shall be done on the basis of good faith relying upon prevailing practices elsewhere. The ARFSL Valuation Committee shall take note of such methodology and accordingly value the security.

In cases of corporate action like stock split, the new stock received with split face value is recorded in books on ex-date.

However, date of acquisition of original shares is construed as date of acquisition of stock received on split for the purpose of computing short term/long term gain.

In cases of corporate action of demerger, the new shares received on de-merger is recorded in books on ex-date but the date of purchase of original shares is reckoned as date of acquisition for new de-merged stock for the purpose of computing gain/(loss). The apportionment of cost between old share and new share is made based on the information provided by the company. However, in case where such information about cost apportionment is not available on ex date, cost of original share is taken as same % which opening ex price of such share bear to closing cum price and balance cost is taken as cost of demerged shares

Valuation of Mutual Funds

Investments in Mutual funds will be valued at the repurchase NAV declared for the relevant schemes on the date of the report or the most recent NAV will be reckoned. Where no NAV is published for a particular day, the previous working day's published NAV will be taken for the valuation purpose.

The accounting policies and standards as outlined above are subject to changes made from time to time by the Portfolio Manager. However such changes would be in conformity with the Regulations.



12. Investor Services

A. Contact information: Any investor queries and complaints can be addressed to:

Concern Team	Concern Person Name	Email ID
Grievance team	Deepak Kedia	grievance@rathi.com
Grievance SEBI	SEBI office	http://scores.gov.in
PMS Team	Shyam Bhutra	pmsoperations@rathi.com

Address:

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited,

Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor,

Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E),

Mumbai - 400 063 Maharashtra

India

Telephone:

022-6281 7000

Fax:

022-6281 3888

The official mentioned above will ensure prompt investor services. The Portfolio Manager will ensure that this official is invested with the necessary authority, independence and the means to handle investor complaints.

B. Grievance Redressal and dispute settlement mechanism:

The Portfolio Manager will endeavor to address all complaints regarding service deficiencies or causes for grievance, for whatever reason, in a reasonable manner and time. If the investor remains dissatisfied with the remedies offered, or the stand taken by the Portfolio Manager, the investor and the Portfolio Manager shall abide by the following mechanisms:

All disputes, differences, claims and questions whatsoever arising between the Client and the Portfolio Manager and/or their respective representatives shall be settled in accordance with and subject to the provisions of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, or any statutory requirement, modification or re-enactment thereof. Such Arbitration proceedings shall be held at Mumbai or such other place as the Portfolio Manager thinks fit in the English language.



Annexure I

Following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business*:

(In Rupees)

				(In Rupees	
S. No.	Nature of Transaction	Parent / Holding Company	Fellow Subsidiary / Associate / Other Related Party	Total	
1	Transactions during the year				
Α	Business Support Charges Received	-	48,91,484	48,91,484	
В	Rent Paid	4,80,000	11,16,000	15,96,000	
С	Referral Commission Paid		2,47,84,872	2,47,84,872	
D	Brand Charges	2,59,733		2,59,733	
E	Business Support Charges Paid	3,83,294	1,04,84,397	1,08,67,691	
F	Interest Received	1,39,406	7,32,424	8,71,830	
G	Interest Paid	3,52,052	1,45,993	4,98,045	
11	Balances outstanding at the end of the year	****		1,50,013	
Α	Debtors		84,067	84,067	
В	Creditors	38,674	3,21,731	3,60,405	
С	Loans and Advances Receivable	48,47,47,255	51,51,481	48,98,98,736	
D	Loan Payable		50,76,31,394	50,76,31,394	
Е	Security Deposit Given	-	1,25,00,000	1,25,00,000	

^{*} Audited details as on March 31st 2020



Mahesh Chandra & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the Disclosure Document of Portfolio Management Services dated March 31st 2020 of M/s Anand Rathi Advisors Limited having its office at Express Zone, A Wing, 10th Floor, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063, India, has been verified by us and found that the disclosures made in the document are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a well informed decision.

For and on behalf of Mahesh Chandra & Associates Chartered Accountants Firm Registration No.112344W

VIPUL VISHOU STANDARD VIPUL VI

Vipul Awaghade Partner Membership No.174518 Mumbai,

Dated: 4th September 2020 UDIN: 20174518AAAAWG3290